
 
 

LICENSING HEARING 
(LICENSING ACT 2003) 

 
 

Monday, 16 May 2022 
10:00 am 

Venue: Microsoft Teams Live 
https://bit.ly/3s9IVYl 

 
PANEL MEMBERS: 

 
Councillor Janice Asman
 Councillor Tim Groves
 Councillor Wayne Irish
 Councillor Derek Pretty 

 
Staff Contacts: 

Laura Johnston, Democratic Services Manager Tel: 023 8068 8041; Email: 
laura.johnston@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 

 
 

APPLICATION TO VARY THE LICENCE FOR: 
 

1. The Application    (Pages 3 - 42) 
 
2. Representations from the Police     
 
3. Representations from Environmental Health     
 
4. Representations from the Fire Authority     
 
5. Representations from Residents     
 
6. Eastleigh Borough Council's Licensing Hearing Procedure    (Pages 43 - 46) 
 
7. Rights of Parties    (Pages 47 - 48) 
 
8. The Decision      
  
 The Panel withdraw to make their decision  
  

1

https://bit.ly/3s9IVYl


This page is intentionally left blank



  

DECISION-MAKER LICENSING PANEL 
 
 
 

 
SUBJECT                    

 
HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A 
PREMISES LICENCE – Spring Tides Lankester House 1 
Freegrounds Road Hedge End SO30 0HG 
 

DATE OF HEARING 16th May 2022 10.00am 
 REPORT OF LEGAL SERVICES MANAGER 

E-mail licensing@eastleigh.gov.uk 

Application Date : 22nd March 2022 Application Received 22nd March 2022 

Application Valid : 22nd March 2022 Reference : 2022/00517/05EPRN 

 

 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100019679 

Representations from Responsible Authorities 

Responsible Authority Satisfactory? 
 

EBC Child Protection 
  Satisfactory 

 

EBC Development Control - Licensing 
  No Response 

 

EBC Environmental Health - Licensing 
  Satisfactory 

EBC - Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service - 
Licensing 

  Satisfactory 

001 3

Agenda Item 1



  

 

Home Office 
  No Response 

 

Public Health Manager 
  No Response 

 

EBC - Police 
  No Response 

 

EBC - Trading Standards - Licensing 
  No Response 

Other Representations 
Name Address Contributor Type 

  
  
Ms Tonia Craig 

12 Peewit Hill 
Bursledon 
Southampton 
Hampshire 
SO31 8BL 

  Councillor  

     
  
Mr Keith House 

Whitegates 
2A Freegrounds Road 
Hedge End Southampton 
Hampshire 
SO30 0HH 

  Resident  

 
Legal Implications 
The Licensing Act 2003 specifically restricts the grounds on which the Council, as Licensing 
Authority (LA), may refuse an application for a new Premises Licence, or impose 
conditions.  Where relevant representations are made, the LA may refuse on the grounds that 
the licensing objectives are not met or the operating schedule is inadequate. Equally, conditions 
may be imposed where relevant and necessary. The LA may also refuse an application in part 
and thereby only permit some of the licensable activities sought. 
The decision making panel, in considering an application, must have regard to the adopted 
Statement of Licensing Policy and any relevant representations made by those directly affected. 
An applicant for a new Premises Licence whose application has been refused, or who is 
aggrieved by conditions imposed, may appeal against the decision to the Magistrates' Court. 
In considering this application the panel will sit in a quasi-judicial capacity and is thus obliged to 
consider applications in accordance with both the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 
2005, and amending secondary legislation and the rules of natural justice. The practical effect of 
this is that the panel must makes its decision based on evidence submitted in accordance with 
the legislation and give adequate reasons for reaching it’s decision. 
 
 
 

0024



  

The committee must also have regard to:- 
 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the Council under a duty to exercise its 
various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and 
the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area. 
 
Human Rights Act 1998 
The Act requires UK legislation to be interpreted in a manner consistent with the European 
Convention on Human Rights. It is unlawful for the Council to act in a way that is incompatible 
(or fail to act in a way that is compatible) with the rights protected by the Act. Any action 
undertaken by the Council that could have an effect upon another persons Human Rights must 
be taken having regard to the principle of Proportionality - the need to balance the rights of the 
individual with the rights of the community as a whole. Any action taken by the Council which 
affect another's rights must be no more onerous than is necessary in a democratic society. The 
matter set out in this report must be considered in light of the above obligations. 
Equality Act 2010 
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires the Council to have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or 
under this Act.  It also requires the Council to advance equality of opportunity and foster good 
relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it.   This means having due regard to the need to removing or minimising disadvantages 
suffered, taking steps to meet the needs of persons, encouraging persons to participate in public 
life, tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.  The relevant protected characteristics are: 
age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; 
sexual orientation. 
 
  

 SUMMARY 
 
This application is a new premises application requesting Recorded Music and Supply by 
Retail of Alcohol.  The supply by retail of alcohol is for the accompaniment of a meal only.  
There will be no off site consumption. 
 
Applicant  Mrs. Alison Davanzo     
Designated Premises Supervisor  Alison Davanzo  

 
Licensable Activities. 
 Recorded music 
 Monday         08:00  - 17:00 
 Tuesday   08:00  - 17:00 
 Wednesday   08:00  - 17:00 
 Thursday   08:00  - 17:00 
 Friday   08:00  - 17:00 
 Saturday   08:00  - 17:00 
 Sunday   08:30  - 14:00 
  

003 5



  

Supply by retail of alcohol 
 Monday   12:00  - 17:00 
 Tuesday   12:00  - 17:00 
 Wednesday   12:00  - 18:00 
 Thursday   12:00  - 18:00 
 Friday   12:00  - 18:00 
 Saturday   12:00  - 18:00 
 Sunday   12:00  - 14:00 
 
 

 
This application has received no representations from Responsible Authorities but has 
received two public representations (Councillors) 
 
Included in Report 
 
Application 
Application – Statement 
Application – Additional Evidence (letters and photos) 
Plans 
Public Representations x 2 (Cllrs) 
 
 
 
 

 

0046



005 7



0068



007 9



00810



009 11



01012



011 13



01214



013 15



01416



015 17



01618



017 19



01820



019 21



02022



021 23



02224



023 25



Alcohol Licensing Statement  

Address: Spring Tides  
Lankester House  
1 Freegrounds Road 
Hedge End 
SOUTHAMPTON 
SO30 0HG 

Application: 

I am submitting premises licence for the above address, selling alcohol beverages solely for 
complimenting a meal. 

Currently the unit is occupied as a tea room/cafe and will maintain as a upmarket 
establishment. I want to create the same attitude as our european neighbours where members 
of the public can enjoy a glass of wine with a bowl of pasta served in a conventional manner 
further more permitting alcohol to enhance the eating experience in a civilised surroundings. 

Alcohol on sale will be limited and only served between the hours of 12-5pm. No alcohol 
will be supplied on tap or draught. We will not sell any alcohol for off site consumption.  

I acknowledge there maybe a small number of residents who will have apprehensive 
thoughts about ‘selling alcohol’ and associating this with loud drunken groups of people who 
gather in a pub, at unsociable hours. I feel it is erroneous if the cafe was tarnished in the 
same category. I appreciate their concerns but need to emphasise this is NOT plausible in the 
concerned small establishment and only shortsighted views will perceive this image.A very 
tight controlled  prevention of crime and disorder including public nuisance behaviour will 
be maintained. The clientele is a mixture of young mums with children, dog walkers, local 
business and retired people. It is difficult to visualise, the combinations of these characters 
would harm public safety and is ludicrous to imagine they would impact or harm the 
neighbouring environment or residents amenity. 

I have a successful cafe in the effluent area of Warsash village with the same concept, the 
locals have welcomed and enjoyed a beverage with food especially the mature generation. 
The feed back is positive and encouraging. The sale of alcohol is only a very small percentage  
of the service we provide.  

I take my responsibilities as a Licence very seriously and understand the consequences 
holding the title. With professional attitude to alcohol and serving appropriately alongside 
lunches it is part of the dining experience. I will sustain a managed and controlled licensed 
businesses in a warm, friendly, attentive environment. I am happy to discuss with the local 
residents or the council if anyone has reservations.  

Alison Davanzo 

02426



025 27



02628



027 29



 

 

 

02830



 

029 31



 

 

03032



 

 

031 33



03234



033 35



From: publicaccess@southampton.gov.uk
To: Licensing
Subject: Comments for Licensing Application 2022/00517/05EPRN
Date: 19 April 2022 18:33:28

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.

Comments were submitted at 6:33 PM on 19 Apr 2022 from Ms Tonia Craig.

Application Summary

Address: Lankester House 1 Freegrounds Road Hedge End
Southampton Hampshire SO30 0HG

Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Tricia Young

Click for further information

Customer Details
Name: Ms Tonia Craig

Email:

Address: 12 Peewit Hill, Bursledon, Southampton, Hampshire SO31
8BL

Comments Details
Commenter
Type: Other

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Reasons
for
comment:

Comments: 6:33 PM on 19 Apr 2022 I am County Councillor for the area
and would like to object on behalf of some residents closest
to the premises. The area is predominantly residential and
the sale of alcohol at this premise could bring noise closer to
them and have an impact on their wellbeing and residential
amenity. It is also set within an highway area and used as a
route to schools by youngsters and families.

03436



From: publicaccess@southampton.gov.uk
To: Licensing
Subject: Comments for Licensing Application 2022/00517/05EPRN
Date: 19 April 2022 22:31:35

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.

Comments were submitted at 10:31 PM on 19 Apr 2022 from Mr Keith House.

Application Summary

Address: Lankester House 1 Freegrounds Road Hedge End
Southampton Hampshire SO30 0HG

Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Tricia Young

Click for further information

Customer Details
Name: Mr Keith House

Email:

Address: Whitegates, 2A Freegrounds Road, Hedge End
Southampton, Hampshire SO30 0HH

Comments Details
Commenter
Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Reasons
for
comment:

Comments: 10:31 PM on 19 Apr 2022 This is a holding objection with
more details to be advised given the Licencing Authority
failed to notify neighbours at all of this application and local
ward councillors were given less than 14 hours to comment.

This application relates to a site that does not have planning
approval for take aways. As such the application for off-
licence sales is not appropriate.

Even within this for on-site consumption, the application
relates to a business just 3.3m away from on-street parking
from the curtilage of the property and parked cars, given
within the curtilage "on street tables and chairs" service for
food provision. This does not allow for safe passing of
vehicles in a busy thoroughfare with neighbouring
businesses during the day and and a busy walk to school
route, during twilight in winter afternoons. 

There are no pavements on this stretch of road and the
previous business on this site (and realistically any
business) has/will fail to maintain tables and chairs within
the curtilage, compromising highway safety even without an

035 37



alcohol licence.

Residential amenity would be significantly compromised by
approval of this application at a site that has historically
been for retail use and has previously been carefully
restricted by the LPA to not open in the evenings and not for
off-site sales.

03638



037 39



03840



039 41



04042



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Procedures for Licensing Hearings 
 

March  2005  
 
 
 
 
All Hearings will be heard and determined in 
accordance with the four Licensing Objectives: 
 

 Prevention of crime and disorder 

 Public safety 
 Prevention of public nuisance 

 Protection of children from harm 

43

Agenda Item 6



 

 
How Licensing Hearings will be Dealt with  
 
 
Eastleigh Borough Council have established a Licensing Committee of 15 
members.  From these 15, three members will be called upon to form a 
Licensing Panel when a hearing is convened.  A fourth member will be in 
attendance at the Civic Offices to stand as substitute for a panel member 
where there may be a conflict of interest, absence or incapacity. 
 
A hearing may be deemed necessary where an application for either a 
Premises Licence, Personal License or Temporary Event Notice receives 
representation from any interested party or responsible authority.  Generally 
these must be made at any time up to and including 28 consecutive days after 
the day on which the application was received.  Representations received 
after this date will only be accepted in exceptional circumstances.   
 
Members of the Licensing Panel are required to balance the needs of an 
important sector with those of local residents, and the population at large and 
whilst serving on the Licensing Committee act in a quasi judicial manner.  
They will follow a proper procedure which accords with the requirements of 
natural justice and the right to a fair trial contained in Article 6 of the European 
Convention on Human Rights.    
 
The Monitoring Officer and Standards Board will provide further guidance to 
Members on the Code of Conduct.   
 
Period of time within which a hearing will be held and notice to be given  
 

Hearing Hearing must be 
commenced within 
(working days) 

Notice to be given  
 

Premises licence 
application S18(3)(a), 
S72(3)(a) 

20 days after the end of 
the prescribed 
consultation period 

5 working days 

Variation of premises 
licence S35(3)(a), S85 (3) 

20 days after the end of 
the prescribed 
consultation period 

10 working days 

Change of DPS 
(Designated Premises 
Supervisor) S39 (3)(a) 

20 days after the end of 
the period within which a 
chief officer of police may 
give notice under S37(5) 

5 working days  

Review of premises 
licence S52(2), S88(2) 

20 days after the end of 
the prescribed 
consultation period 

5 working days 

Counter notice following 
police objection to TEN 
S105(2)(a) 

7 days after the end of the 
period within which a chief 
officer of police may give 
notice under S104(2) 

2 working days 

Personal licence 20 day after the end of the 5 working days 

44



 

application S 120(7)(a)` period within which a chief 
officer of police may give 
notice under S105(5) 

Review, following closure 
order S167(5)(a) 

10 days after receiving 
notice under S165(4) 

2 working days  

 
If a hearing is to be held on more than one day, the hearing will, wherever 
possible  be arranged to take place on consecutive working days.   
 
Notice of hearing will be provided to interested parties and will be published 
on the EBC website and will include:   
 
Copy of the application 
The proposed Operating Schedule 
Plans of the establishment   
Copies of relevant representations  
 
 
Immediately Prior to the start of the hearing 
 
The Clerk to the Licensing Panel will introduce him/herself to all parties and 
ascertain whether all papers relating to the application have been received.  
 
At the Hearing  
 
In addition to the following guidelines, reference will be made to The Licensing 
Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 and any subsequent amendments 
thereof. 
 

 General matters of housekeeping and health and safety will be read 
out by the Chair  

 

 The Chair will introduce members and officers to the applicant and 
outline the procedure.  

 

 The Clerk will ask the Applicant, or their representative together 
with the Objectors or their representatives  to confirm their identity to 
the Panel .  

 

 The Clerk will present the relevant facts with regard to the application 
and reasons for a hearing .  The Panel and other interested parties 
may ask questions with regard to the facts of the application.  

 

 The Applicant or their representative will present their case. 
The Panel may ask questions, and may permit cross examination.  

 

 Objectors will present their case 
The Panel may ask questions, and may permit cross examination. 

  
 

45



 

 The Clerk to the Licensing Panel  will outline that any decision will  
be made on the application and objections, and in accordance with the 
Licensing objectives and the Eastleigh Borough Council Statement of 
Licensing Policy  

 

 The Panel determine the application, the determination may be 
undertaken in private and Panel members alone,  may withdraw from 
the hearing. 

 
ADDITIONAL NOTES  

i. No discussion (neither formal nor informal) or determination will  be 
undertaken prior to the hearing. 

ii. If the Committee, have retired to consider the application  and need to 
question or clarify a matter with either the Clerk to the Licensing Panel  
or applicant then they shall do so in the presence of all parties, or the 
Clerk may be called upon to advise.  

iii. Members must be present throughout the hearing and must not 
communicate with any officer, the applicant or other third party except 
in accordance with the procedure rules.  

Decision Making 

Reasons for decision made must be clearly documented so that any 
subsequent accusations of bias etc can be defended.  It is critical that it is 
clear that decisions are made according to the Licensing Objectives as well as 
the Council’s Licensing Policy.   

No pre-hearing meetings or discussions directly related to any application will 
take place.   

46



Parties’ Rights and Consequences of Non-Attendance  
 
The following is an extract from the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005:  
Hearing to be public  
14.—  
(1) Subject to paragraph (2), the hearing shall take place in public.  
(2) The licensing authority may exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it 

considers that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the 
hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in public.  

(3) For the purposes of paragraph (2), a party and any person assisting or representing a party 
may be treated as a member of the public.  

Right of attendance, assistance and representation  
15. Subject to regulations 14(2) and 25, a party may attend the hearing and may be assisted or 
represented by any person whether or not that person is legally qualified.  
Representations and supporting information  
16. At the hearing a party shall be entitled to—  

(a) in response to a point upon which the authority has given notice to a party that it 
will want clarification under regulation 7(1)(d), give further information in support of 
their application, representations or notice (as applicable),  
(b) if given permission by the authority, question any other party; and  
(c) address the authority.  

17. Members of the authority may ask any question of any party or other person appearing at 
the hearing.  
18. In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may take into 
account documentary or other information produced by a party in support of their application, 
representations or notice (as applicable) either before the hearing or, with the consent of all 
the other parties, at the hearing.  
19. The authority shall disregard any information given by a party or any person to whom 
permission to appear at the hearing is given by the authority which is not relevant to—  

(a) their application, representations or notice (as applicable) or in the case of another 
person, the application representations or notice of the party requesting their 
appearance, and  
(b) the promotion of the licensing objectives or, in relation to a hearing to consider a 
notice given by a chief officer of police, the crime prevention objective.  

Failure of parties to attend the hearing  
20.—  
(1) If a party has informed the authority that he does not intend to attend or be represented at a 
hearing, the hearing may proceed in his absence.  
(2) If a party who has not so indicated fails to attend or be represented at a hearing the 
authority may—  

(a) where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the hearing to a 
specified date, or  
(b) hold the hearing in the party’s absence.  

(3) Where the authority holds the hearing in the absence of a party, the authority shall 
consider at the hearing the application, representations or notice made by that party.  
(4) Where the authority adjourns the hearing to a specified date it must forthwith notify  

47

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 The Application
	6 Eastleigh Borough Council's Licensing Hearing Procedure
	7 Rights of Parties
	Parties’ Rights and Consequences of Non-Attendance  




